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Introduction

This Report, eﬁbodyfng ¥h€-ré§ufﬁs of ‘a study of thé history
and the physical environment of Mt. Washington Tavern jn Feyette
"County, Pennsylvania, whenvitrﬁas coh@@cted‘as a stagé house on the
old Cumberlgnd Roed, is’respectfully sﬁbmitted with a view toward
aiding in pending designs for landscaping in the proximitv of the
building. During the inprovement of the highway (U. S. Route 40)
in 1936 the oldvroad vas obllterated‘a distance of several hundred
yarde in front (North)%of the structure, and excavations Weré.madé
which leaves the building séﬁe 12 feet above the present grade of
the concrete pavement., Subssguently the earth was partially filled
in. (Refer to inset in Master Plan of Ft, Kecessity State Paﬁk,
July 15th, 1936) The question now involved’cbﬂcefns chiefly the
restoration of the roadwsy and courtyard in front of the bulldlng
to as nearly as pcssible the original appearance and to screen the
modern concrete highway in thé vista from the entrance of the
Tavern. At the same time the landscgping involves the treatment of

grounds immediatély to the west, south and east of the building.
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The project in no mannér concerns the restoration and refufnishing
of the Tavern end the - subject matter of this Report therefore, pPro-

sumes no prop051tlons beyond the exterlor treatment above alluded to.

Historieal Background

Mt. Washington Tavern was arected on & tract of 254% acfes,
knovm as the "Great Mea dows“, acqulred by George Washington in 1769,
Here in tae‘carly sumer of 1754 “ashingbon in command of an expedi-
tion directed toward the Ohio with qbout 400 Colonial troops from
Virginia and South Carolina established his Advance base and subse~
guently built e stockade which he named Ft;~Necessity, On July 3,
1754, he was attacke& by‘a large force of.Frehcﬁ and Indians, and
after & defense of niné hours was.bbliged to capitulate. It was
Washington's firstfnajor military exnéfience énd when iands in this
. region were opened for cettlement it is not surprising that he desired
the site of his 1ni‘bial battleground for sentimental reasons as well
as for the material velue of the land, He held bhe tract +111 his
death snd in his will directed it to be sold with other real éState
~ held by him on thé frontier, and fhe proceeds to go to his heirs. He
thus ds°or1bes the property*y ; o

"The land is valuable on account of its loecal lbeca-
tion. It affords sn exceeding good stand on Braddoek's
road¥ from Cumberland to Pittsburgh, and besides a fertile
's0il, possesses a large quantity of natural meadow, fit '

- for the scythe. It is distinguished by the eppelation of
the Great Meadows, where the first action with the French,
in 1754, was fought." '

¥ T4 afforded & "good stand" on the Braddock Road which at the
time of Washirgton's death in 1799 was one of the chief pioneer
- trails between the Atlantic seaboard and the vslley of the Ohio,
but no tevern stand was opened on it en dhe Great Meadows tract.
The Braddock Road was abandoned about 1818 upon the opening of the
Cumberland Road. ‘
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After passing through the hands of various owners¥ the peoperty
was acquired by Judge Nathaniel Ewing, & prominent resident of Fayefte
County;‘ln lSlS,the,Cumberlaﬁd Road was opened between Baltimofe and
the West, and at this point»the highway was roﬁted half a mile north
of the old Braddock Road. Coiqcidentwifh the opening of traffic
Judge Ewing erected the large hbﬁSe’ﬁéér-the road on the highest
land on the farm end named it t. Washinnton. It was constructed of
brick moulded and burnt iﬂ Pilns on the farm. The house xas opened
- &as a tavern and was the flrst substantlal building on the roed between
the present site of Uniontown and the Litt;e Meadows meny miles to
the eastward. On‘account of its gize and comfortable accbmodations
it was rated as a stage hbuse and enjoyed‘gdod patronage. Judge Ew~
‘ing sold the property to James Sampey who conducted the stémiuntil»
his death in 1€44. Robert Hogsttt‘dperéted the house forAﬁhe Sampey
heirs and on the first year turned over to the representative of the
estete $4'OOO és the profits for 12 months,** It was then a station
on the Good Intent Stage Llre snd Hogsett mentions that one morning
.73 pascengers took breskfast at Ut. Wsshlngton. " John Foster and James,
foore, sons-in<law of Sampeg conducted the house wuntil the stage-
lines went out of business early in-the 1850s, Ellis Y. Beggs was
the next owner. After a few years he sold the property to Godfrey

Fazenbaker, who exgaged ektensively in ferming and stockraising, His

* An abstract of the title was furnished the U. S. War Department vhen
the Federal Government took over the two-acre plet at the Fort,

**. U"The 01d Pike" by Thomas B. Searight, pp. 228.
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heirs transférred‘it to the Commonﬁealth of PeﬁnsylVania*>Fééonbaker
mgde many}improveménté;’onelosed thé{fields'witﬁ board féncéé and
erected barns and outbuildings. The latter structures were built
ee.st of the house and stables and éhed"e_s west of the house, which were
used in the days of the stage lines, were altered dut liftle %
| The’accompanying photostat, taLen from & photo-engrav1n° 1r
Thomas B, Searight‘s bodk "The Old Pike", is from. a photograph made
sbout 1890 and ShOWs Mt. nashlngton Taverh ‘and’ outbuildings and in -
relation to the road. The sheds and stables sre those that existed in
stage coech days:¥* The v1ew is from the northeast The two~story
frame annex has since been removed. The stables were destroye;?¥§;3
_ground.on vhich they stood is now owned by William Burley, one of
the Fazenbaker’heirs, the farm having been divided. The properfy
line is ebout 30 feet wesﬁ.of the horthweét corner of the houée.‘The
board fence;_aecordingﬂto the bestwobtainable;informafionj Was'built

by Fazonbaker.

Present Aspect of the House

- dhen the house wgs~use@ﬁas & tovern stage coaches and other
vehicles carrying passéngeré drew up in front'of the door, stopping»
within 20 feet of the house. Wwhether there was o ravement on Which
travelers could allght in order to evoid the mud in the rainy season ,

Cis a matter of doubt. The surface of the ground in front ond west of

* Statements of the'Fazenbakér family to the writer.-

** Statements of “the Fazenbaker family, Kennedy MYoore, an oldtlme
resident of the neighborhood and student of local history of Wharton
Township, end others. Corroboration is furnished by }McClellan Leohard,
loecal historian of Fayette County and president of Ft Tecmsity
Chepter, -Sons of the American Revolutlon.
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~ the house duriﬁg thé;ﬁpfiéélfrém?18§O f§ 1905 Was‘ﬁérd-andléofered
- with étone‘screeﬁings“similar to that ﬁsed on the suﬁhce‘of'thé~§i£e*
and it is. believed that surfﬂcing materlal on the road in.early days
. served alco around the tavern. At present a cut—étohé pavement of
machined stone in square blocks fofms‘a pévemeﬁt 12 b& 49  feet in»
front of the door. This was added in comparatively r;gant%years and
does not conform to ths surroundings. It is quite certain that no
such pavement existed in—the days of the stage coaches. Other brick
taverns,‘notably those in Hopwood, Uniontowﬁ and Eealisville had
brick ravements gbout six feet wide at.their dooryafds; There is a
possibility that It, Washington also had a brick pavement since there
" was en abundance of this pa#ing material on the farﬁ, but among_thé
oldesti.residents none remembers anythiﬁg bejond 8 large stone door-—
- step which still remains, ) |
‘Immediafely west of the house between it and the sheds was the-
wagon yard. There is nothlng to indicate that it was fenced on the
side facing the road. On the north s1de of the road about 40 yards
west of the house is a never failing spring which supplled water for
a large wood horse trough. This was almost dirsctly across the road
from the stables. Since - the highWay has been improved the spring has

been;eycavated and set back some distance, A two~inch water pipe hes

'been laid under the ooncrete pavement of the road and eastward to a
poinf within ten yards of the“northwesf corner of the house.. The head
of the spring is about 12 feet ubove the lnvel of the precent road‘>
The pipe has been placed in or&er eventually to utilize the flow of

water.to the Tavern for such purpqses as may be dstermined.

* From the writer's own cbservations in lay, 1904.
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All other outbuildings in use previous to 1920 h Ve been re—‘
moved, end there is no euthentio 1nformation as to where they stoom,
except in»fhercase‘ofta'bafn which- was 100f&ards eest of the house
and immediately south of‘#heyhighway.lThe barn was bnilt»ny Fazen-
baker and has 1o significance-in the gquestion oferestoration. The-
north row of apple trees in the orchard was\about 25 yards south of
the house. A dooryard oceupled the intervening snace but +here is no
information as to how the ground was improved. -Doubtless outsids
privies were here but nothing is known &s to their ldcétion.'There is
a tradition that a springhonse with'a second floor Snokehouse we.s
situated at the head of a ravine'abont 50\yands east of the south-
east corner of the building. This springAis now closed bnt the con-
tour of the ground indiestes that thereﬂhaé‘been'a water oourse as
- from a spring overflow extending_to the footgof the hill.

Tnaees of fences, if any existed prior to 1850, heve disappear-
ed. Tt is probable’ that thevwagonyafd was enclosed except that por-
tion facing the road..If there Were enelosures for c¢attle,sheep and
hogs thsse orobably'were some dlstance from the house. Since it is
remembered that ht Washlngton was & stage. houee and did- not bid for
the oatronage of drovers, herders and others who usually accepted
less superlor aecomodatlon° at lower cost there is no informaticn ss
 to any provi81on for thls elass of trgwelersf dorm fences constrcted
of egplit rails about'elght feetnloné and stdne walls surmounted some=
times by a stake and rider rail werse first used in this region to en-
close the fields; Picket fences were not uncommon in viilages and to
some degree‘were fourd at country dwellings, but it must be remember-
ed that neils were,expensive and were used sparingly. Werm fences were

followed by the "postaand—rail“, being a;post set 2% feet in the
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earth gnd morﬁiSed 1o carry“three to five rails.‘Thehearly type of
this fence came 1n about 1845. . ‘

Two latrines are located in the remnent of the orchard 50 yards
south of the bullding. he structures were built of rough lumber and
were 1nstalled five years ago. Both are. 1n abominnble condition and
should be removed at once to glve place for sanitary conveniences. If
no funde are evailabie for this purpesecit would be better that there

‘be no_accomodations at all, -

Suggestions

7 It is Eorne%in ﬁind'that the<even£uai rehabi1itationlof‘ﬁte
washington contemplates its reetOratlon 8s a typieal Cumberland Road
stage hou°e., This, it seems, would permit some 1atutude in the plan-

-nlrg, &8 forrlnstance, the laylng of a brick pavement between the
£ront ‘enbrance end ‘the road. ' | _
Although tnere is no evidence that there was a lawn with flomers
‘at.the side of the houee, and~the testlmony of the best informed rer-
sons is to the contrary, it appearQ no V1olat*on of tradltlon to PIro=-
- v1de a8 grass plot with oldfashloned florers, such as June roses, an-
nuals, perenn;a;s, etc.,‘slpee some old,taverns and nezrly all pri-
vate homes in this region ﬁere'eomaaorned.f'Vestiges of flower gar-
dens are’still to be seenaarouni the'oldhbuildings‘ Landse&piﬁg in-
volvihg.grass plots emnd flowere,‘however, ahould aveid enything
formal or elaborate. 7 7 .
It is generally agreed that the paths leading from the parking
arees at the grade of the present road and located east ann west of
Athe Taverﬁ arevto simulate to some degres the original pike. In Garry-

ing out this scheme of freatment~the rogd should be at least 18 feet
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in width and surf ced,w1th fine 11mestone (SCTGGnlﬂFS) well rolled in

similar to old macadamed road, These roadwaeys are each 90 feet in

ieﬁgth, rising on the west on a eix percent grade and on thg east on

.a grade of 14 percent, It is understood; of course, that the rosds
"will not be used for. vehicles butb 1f 1t is intended to restore the
'semblance of the originsl plke, steps or risers chould not be pTaced

“therein, This sugresticn is made after the question was iged whether

steps were not necessary in the east emproach,
It is consideraed grobable that a retalnlrg wall may be re~

quired to support the terrace some 25 by 48 feet girsetly in front

of the house, the wall to be erected at the Crgst of the slope (See

plan) with a depth ef three te four‘féet._ The»wall would be cornceal-
ed by the plenting oh.éhe Glope ?eciﬁg fhe highway. ?ustlc ﬁitchlng
posts and rails would form a safety baluster at tbe top.of the wall.
Barly hﬂtchlrg rails were wede by mortlslng posts snd insertin
round oxyoetacon reils about three inches in dlameter, or . by fitting
rails over the poéts{'Thé_posts were sboubt six feét apart, Eveuntually
e horse.trqugh‘made.ffom a hewed log éould be placed oh the simulated
roadway’and supplied bj pate;fbiped from the spring north of the road
CIn providing'toilet faéilities if geems guestionable to obgerve

aebsolute historical, accuracy. To do so would 1nV1te condemn%tion by

the State Denartment of Publlc Health. Toreover, it is probsble that

it will be desir d tc instell modern’ sanltary flush closets with

"lavatorleq emptving into sentic tanks. It is suggested in this re-

gard that & small. bullding be crected °ufflclently large to provide
confortable apsrtments for men and women respectively. ‘This may be a

plain rectangular struotuve, nr rably of brlck locuted not more

then 20 yards from the rear of the Tavern. It would have the dimen-
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sions and'geheral appearance of avsmokehouse. It could be screened
byvgrape vines, lilaeé or hedge plants. Grape vines should\not be
- trained oﬁ lattice screens or 8laborate arbors, Arched arbors and
lattice sereens were not common in this ?eglon until after 1850, »
It is reallzed thet the nlantlng\on the slope in front of the
Tavern will be guided largely by utllltg nnd the effort to get the
most effective screen in a eomparatlvqu smail“area The use of

_’\'j\
evergrerns for ornamental purposes in thié&{pc lity does not date

'?t

<3n

beyond 1870. One hundred Years ago the peppie of Western Pennsyl-
vania, and especially thoee in the mountaln reglons were still
slaughterirg trees except maples and thosc forest trnes which bore

a nut crop. It vas a later veneratlon that appreclated the ornamentsl

value of trees. Here again 1t seemaxexpedlent “to make some sacrlflce

b,

John P. Cowan
Junipr Historian

to historical sccurscy.

Resgectfully submitted,

A

cc: Washington—lir, Spalding
Richmond—Ir. Evison; ILir. Appleman -
Bronxville—1r, Borgeson/ur. Yelg
Gettysburg—-iir. i cConaghie .
Ir. Diggs
lir, Sheffield
M¥r. Brooke
DY
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RESTORATION OF THE APPLE ORCHARD, MT. VASHINGTON TAVERN,
- FT, NECESSITY STATE' PARK. . - . ' ..

”*

~ John ?0 ,f}ovr’ran, o B :‘ : S
Junior Historiam. .. - | (Levernlien 19386 -

L g

- This is written in support of a suggestion made in & previous
- .Report urging that the planting of forest trees immediately south
of Mt. Vashington Tavern be discontinued and that the project be

amended to provide for the restoration of the apple orchard which
covered the site. - s " B . _—

‘ Acecording to-the present plans it is intended to plant forest.
- trees-~oeks, maples and poplars predominating~-~on the entire hill-
side south of the Tavern building, the object being to restore the
forest that surrounded the Great Meadows tract on which Ft. Neces-
81ty stood, and to screen the Tavern, a comparatively modern build- -
ing, in the vista from.the Fort. Vhile the desirability of forming
& perfect screen is generally admitted, there nevertheless is a
conflict of purpose. which is worthy of earnest consideration.

Ft. Necessity, erected in 1754, was the scene of the first
ma jor engagement in tge French and Indian.%ar. The Great Meadows,.
selected -by Lieut. Col. George Vashington for his palisade, was a
treeless area agbout 200 yards wide and was surrounded by hills
- covered with virgin forest. In the plans for the restoration of
the Fort and its environs it is natural that the hills be re- '
planted to simulate the forest growth of 182 .years ago.

However, in the development of Ft. Necessity State Park tenta-
tive approval has been given to a plan for the restoration of the
1it., Washington Tavern on the 0ld National Rosd and to re-~furnish
it as a typical stage house of the period from 1820 to 1850 when
the highway was thronged with traffic--Conestoga wagons carrying -
freight from the 'Atlantic seaboard to the Ohio valley region and
stage coaches bearing passengers between the East and the West.
The Tavern is on' the south side of the highway, now known as U. S.
- 40, and situated about 325 yards north of Ft.. Necessity stockade

on'a'hill with en elevation about 100 feet above the Fort. It will
. be apparent that the work of restoring areas belonging to such ,
widely separated historic periods will result in a clash, and to
secure harmony the problem should be approached in an attitude of
-compromise, : R S

: Tlhen the Tavern was built shortly before the opening of the
National Road -the hillside below it had. been cleared and the ad-
Joining land was under cultivation. The house was built of brick .
moulded and burnt on the farm. Like all brick dwellings. and public
- houses of that period. it was built fronting .closé to the highwgy.
.In villages which grew up along the National Road during the same
years the houses were flush with the highway which formed the main
street through the towns. Notable examples are found in Uniohtown,

#



Brownsville; Beallsville and Vashington, Pennsylvania. Builders of
brick and stone houses along the road remote from the villages ad=
hered to the same principle and the -highway. for all practical pur-
..poses could be regarded as & tstreet!, Usually a pavement or. side-
‘walk bordered the roed and extended to the front #oor of the house,
this idea having been handed down from customs in Englend. Residemces
with a manorial.atmosphere located far back from the public roads in
iiestern Pennsylvania belong to & cons1derably date than Mt. Fash—
ington Taverns o . later -

. R An apple orchard wes set out on the 11t. hashington property~‘
" about 1830, or perhaps a few years &exlier. It covered almost two .
acres, inciuding an open grea immediately south of the houses It

- . contained about 40 trees, planted in five rows extending 75 ‘yards.

east eand west, and numbering eight trees each, The first row of :
trees was about 25 yards south of the south wall of the buildinge. -
The width of the prchard was 55 yards, that is, extending north and
"south. Twelve trees remain, The gnarled trunks of several of’ these
~ ‘indicate that they are ‘from 75 to 100 years olds

) . The orchard flourished Within “the memory :of many persons re-
. siding in the neighborhood who are still living:  Heirs.of Louis

- Fazenbaker, last owner of the farm, ‘confirm the~desggﬁggég given

- above. In further confirmation it is only necessary ,\r e land=

. scape of the environs of Ft. Necessity painted by Paul Tleber in -
1854, Tieber's picture is almost photégraphically exact as may be
seen by comparing his canvas with existing objects. The cortour of
the hills, the courses of streams, the location of fences and the
~details of the Tavern and other remaining buildings are faithful in
every respect. The orchard in. 1854 was in its prime. The artist
shows it in full foliage and covering the area I have described.
Tleber's work is well known and theére are notable examples of paint«
Aings in the Academy of Fine Arts and thé Borcoran Gallery of Art, .
Vashington. He was born in Germany, settled in-Philadelphia in 1848

. and on a trip to Testern Pennsylvanis painted Ft. Necessity site,

. Braddock's Grave and the site of Braddock's defeat on the Mononga~
"~ hela river. In- 1858 he became court painter in the Grand Duchy of .
Darmstadte A photostat of Weber's Ft. -Necessity from a . -photoengrav-
ing in "The Braddock Trail" by Dr. John Kennedy Lacock Will be sub- o

- mitted later as- part.of this Reports

\.. To complete the restoration of the orchard it would be neces—
- sary t0 plant only twelve treeg, filling out the first and second
rows nearest the house. These obviously should be the old.favorite
varieties of fruit, the July pippin, the Baldwin, the Winesap, etes

. The extreme south row of trees is a few feet above the crest
of the hill whence the ground slopes up gradually to the building.
Below the south“”@xtending southward, the ground recedes sharply to
the Meadows, the distance being 150 yards to the border of the pro-
posed forest planting at the north edge of the Meadows. Reference
‘to the contour lines on the Major -Pian, Ft. Necessity State Park,
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- ~indibate how matured oaks, maples and poplaes on the crest would
~_ completely obscure the orchard and the Tavern in the view from the
Fort. Until these trees reach maturity they would blend harmon-
iously with the fruit trees and the distance is so great that the
= different varieties. Would be difficult to distlnguish.

Vestern Pennsylvania settlers were ruthless in cutting away
- forest trees from the proximity of -their -dwellings. They were v
- sometimes considerate of a chestnut, a hickory or a walnut and OCe.
casionally allowed one or two oaks’ or -meples to remain on account
. of .their generous shade, but beyond a very few trees they felled
~ ‘those near the house to make way for cultivated fields-end farm-
~ yard, or the planting of gardens and growing of fruit. - They were
- devoted to the tradition of Johnny Appleseed. Today the sites of
many pioneer houses may be traced only by a solitary apple tree .
that has remained even after the foundations of ‘the o0ld bulldings
have been obliterated. - Within a few miles of Ft. Necessity, there
are still.these living monumentsko several homes of settlers whose
names gre now unknown. : )

'In the restoration of M. Uashington ‘Tavern I urge that the
orchard be retained. It would in no sense interfere with the pro-
per development of the yard immediately surrounding the building, -
but rather would simplify that festure of landscaping. The forest

" planting on the-hillside will dissociate the landmark on the "01d

Pike" from the colonial battleground in ghe valley. I believe
the parallel restoration affecting these two activities can be
cerried on without inflioting a serious ¢lash to either. ‘

.- Junior Historian -
cce Washington-hr.VSpalding

: Richmond

Richmond—-fir. Appleman
Gettysburg==lir. LeConaghie

Mr. Diggs - . o e
lr. Sheffield . . -
Mr. Brooke - LT .

November 10th, 1936 -



